
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Regulatory Committee 
 
Date:  Tuesday, 8 October 2019 
Time:  10.30 am 
Venue:  Committee Room 2, Shire Hall 

 
Membership 
Councillor Mark Cargill (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Richard Chattaway 
Councillor John Cooke 
Councillor Bill Gifford 
Councillor Bill Olner (Chair) 
Councillor Anne Parry 
Councillor David Reilly 
Councillor Clive Rickhards 
Councillor Kate Rolfe 
Councillor Jill Simpson-Vince 
 
Items on the agenda: -  
 

1.   General 
 

 

(1) Apologies  

To receive any apologies from Members of the Committee. 
 

 

(2) Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests.  

Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary 
interests within 28 days of their election or appointment to the 
Council. A member attending a meeting where a matter arises in 
which they have a disclosable pecuniary interest must (unless they 
have a dispensation):  
 
• Declare the interest if they have not already registered it  
• Not participate in any discussion or vote  
• Must leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

(Standing Order 39).  
• Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring 

Officer within 28 days of the meeting Non-pecuniary interests must 
still be declared in accordance with the Code of Conduct. These 
should be declared at the commencement of the meeting. 

 

 

(3) Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
 
 

5 - 12 



Regulatory Committee 
Tuesday, 8 October 2019 

Page 2 
  

 

2.   Delegated Decisions 13 - 14 

 Members are asked to note the applications dealt with under 
delegated powers since the last meeting. 
 

 

 
Planning Applications 
 

3.   Planning Application Ref: RBC/18CM021 - Shawell 
Quarry 
 

15 - 44 



Regulatory Committee 
Tuesday, 8 October 2019 

Page 3 
  

 

 

Disclaimers 
 

Webcasting and permission to be filmed 
Please note that this meeting will be filmed for live broadcast on the internet and can be 
viewed on line at warwickshire.public-i.tv. Generally, the public gallery is not filmed, but by 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area you are consenting to being 
filmed. All recording will be undertaken in accordance with the Council's Standing Orders. 
 

Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of 
their election of appointment to the Council. A member attending a meeting where a matter 
arises in which s/he has a disclosable pecuniary interest must (unless s/he has a 
dispensation):  
 
• Declare the interest if s/he has not already registered it  
• Not participate in any discussion or vote  
• Must leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with  
• Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting  
 
Non-pecuniary interests must still be declared in accordance with the Code of Conduct. 
These should be declared at the commencement of the meeting 
The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web 
www.warwickshire.gov.uk/committee-papers 2  
 

Public Speaking 
 
If you wish to speak in relation to any application listed on the agenda please notify Helen 
Barnsley or the relevant planning officer in writing at least three working days before the 
meeting. You should give your name and address and the application upon which you wish 
to speak.  
 
Full details of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s Standing Orders.  
 

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/committee-papers%202


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Regulatory Committee 
 

Tuesday, 3 September 2019  

 

Minutes 
 
Attendance 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Mark Cargill (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Richard Chattaway 
Councillor John Cooke 
Councillor Bill Gifford 
Councillor Bill Olner (Chair) 
Councillor Anne Parry 
Councillor David Reilly 
Councillor Clive Rickhards 
Councillor Kate Rolfe 
Councillor Jill Simpson-Vince 
Councillor Adrian Warwick 
Councillor Chris Williams 
 
Officers 
Jasbir Kaur, Strategic Planning and Development Manager 
Ian Marriott, Corporate Legal Service Manager 
Tom McColgan, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Sally Panayi, Planning Assistant 
Scott Tompkins, Assistant Director for Environment Services 
 
Others Present 
Alison Doyle 
Shaun Foley 
Gary Philpotts, Vice Chair of Governors, High Meadow School  
Gavin Mitchell, Project Manager 
Graham Stanley, Safer Routes to School 
Jessica Consolaro, Safer Routes to School 
Tony Burrows, Development Management Engineer 
Bern Timings, Education 
Brian Fisher, Pick Everard 
 
 
1. General 
 

(1) Apologies 
 
 None 

 

Page 5

Page 1 of 7 Agenda Item 1(3)



 

 
Regulatory Committee 
 
03.09.19 

(2) Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests. 
 
 Councillor Reilly declared that he was the local member for Coleshill North & Water Orton and 

he would withdraw from the meeting to speak on items 3 and 4. 
 
(3) Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

 
 The Committee agreed that the minutes of the Regulatory Committee meeting held on 6 

August 2019 be signed by the Chair as a true and accurate record. 
 

2. Delegated Decisions 
 
The Committee noted the delegated decisions made by officers since the last meeting as laid out 
in the report. 
 
3. NWB/19CC007 - High Meadow School, Norton Road, Coleshill, B46 1ES 
 
Councillor Reilly withdrew from the Committee for consideration of NWB/19CC007 as he had 
registered to speak as an objector. 
 
Sally Panayi introduced the application which had been deferred by the Committee at their 
previous meeting. The applicant had adjusted the location of the temporary classroom so that it 
was rotated 90 degrees from its original positon which increased the distance from neighbouring 
properties and reduced overlooking which had been raised as a concern by objectors.  
 
Questions to the Planning Officer 
 
In response to Councillor Cargill, Mrs Panayi stated that officers recommended a condition for the 
Applicant to submit details of the building finish for approval and that elevations facing the 
neighbours could be left grey. 
 
In response to Councillor Rolfe, Mrs Panayi stated that the classroom had to be on raised 
foundations both to allow for drainage and to create a level floor. The change in location may allow 
for a reduction in the height of the elevation but drainage needs at the site would still necessitate 
elevated foundations. 
 
In response to Councillor Warwick, Mrs Panayi stated that the construction schedule was quite 
tight and reducing the time the temporary classroom was in situ would not leave any leeway for 
delays. 
 
Public Speakers 
 
The Chair invited Alison Doyle to address the committee in objection to the application. Mrs Doyle 
thanked the Committee and Officers for the consideration paid to neighbour objections made at the 
last meeting and noted that the classroom had now been moved and that obscure glazing had 
been installed. She stated that the plans showed that there was still some room on the site which 
may allow for the classroom to be moved further away from neighbouring houses and asked 
Members to consider calling for this. She also stated that she still felt the safety of children 
travelling to school had not been adequately addressed; pedestrians already had to walk in the 

Page 6

Page 2 of 7



 

 
Regulatory Committee 
 
03.09.19 

road as cars were being parked on the pavement and increasing traffic would only exacerbate this 
issue especially with the reduced parking available around the school due to dropped kerbs 
installed over the summer. 
 
The Chair invited Councillor Reilly to address the Committee as a local Councillor. Councillor Reilly 
stated that he recognised the hard work that had been done by Officers to bring an acceptable 
application back to the Committee. He stated that residents at 25 Rose Road had decided not to 
come and speak on the application but had requested that the light over the door to the temporary 
classroom be shielded. 
 
In response to the Chair, Mrs Panayi stated that she felt the amended position of the classroom 
was the best possible solution and did not think there was the flexibility on the site to allow the 
classroom to be moved again. 
 
In response to Councillor Rickhards, Mrs Doyle stated that a number of dropped kerbs had been 
installed in the roads around the school meaning that the number of space available for on street 
parking had reduced by eight. 
 
Mrs Panayi clarified that the transport assessment had identified 170 spaces within 500 metres of 
the school. The infant intake required 69 spaces and the additional year 3 class required 20 
spaces bringing the total number of spaces required to accommodate parents during drop off and 
pick up to 89. Even with the loss of 8 spaces this still left 162 spaces within reasonable walking 
distance of the school. She also confirmed that no Highways objection had been received for 
NWB/19CC007 but Highways had objected to NWB/19CC006. 
 
The Chair stated that there were always issues with parking around schools and that ensuring that 
there was proper signage on the road preventing parents from parking across dropped kerbs 
would help to mitigate issues. Councillor Gifford also noted that an increase in dropped kerbs 
might also result in less pressure on on-street parking as residents would be more likely to park in 
their driveways.  
 
Mrs Panayi responded that white lining to provide ‘H’ bars across drives would have to be taken up 
by the Safer Routes to Schools team and then enforcement would be down to Warwickshire 
Police. 
 
In response to Councillor Chattaway, Gary Philpotts confirmed that the school would be able to 
shield the entrance light as requested by Councillor Reilly on behalf of Rose Road residents. 
 
Debate 
 
Councillor Parry stated that she felt the Committee had given much consideration to the 
application and residents’ concerns and that the application before Members was acceptable. She 
moved that the Committee grant planning permission. 
 
Councillor Simpson-Vince seconded the motion stating that the new location of the classroom was 
the best compromise that could reasonably be achieved. 
 
Councillor Warwick asked for an additional condition requiring that elevations facing neighbouring 
properties be left grey rather than being decorated. 

Page 7

Page 3 of 7



 

 
Regulatory Committee 
 
03.09.19 

 
The Chair paid tribute to the work Sally Panayi had done to bring the revised application back to 
Committee so quickly and to the objectors, particularly Alison Doyle, who had engaged in a 
constructive and reasonable way.  
 
The Chair called a vote on the motion to grant permission as outlined in the report, with the 
addition of a condition requiring elevations facing neighbours be coloured grey and one requiring 
that the external light over the door to the classroom be shielded, which was agreed unanimously. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Committee authorises the grant of permission as recommended with the inclusion of 
additional conditions requiring the two elevations facing neighbouring properties to be coloured 
grey and the shielding of the external light over the door to the classroom. 
 
4. NWB/19CC006 - High Meadow School, Norton Road, Coleshill, B46 1ES 
 
Councillor Reilly withdrew from the Committee to speak on the application as he had registered to 
speak as an objector. Councillor Rolfe was not present for the vote on NWB/19CC006. 
 
Sally Panayi introduced the application and circulated amended conditions and removed a 
condition relating to maintaining the condition of the highway as it related solely to County Council 
functions. She also stated that Fire and Rescue had made a late comment which required access 
for a fire engine to the new building which could be achieved within the existing site layout but 
would need the vehicle entrance to be adjusted, and a condition had been added to achieve that.  
In addition, she recommended that Condition 3 be further amended to include a reference to 
construction working hours as part of the construction management plan. 
 
Questions to Planning Officer 
 
In response to the Chair, Mrs Panayi stated that construction was due to take around 45 weeks 
from October 2019 to April 2019 and the timing of the construction activity including piling work 
would be detailed in the construction management plan.  
 
In response to the Chair, Mrs Panayi stated that the new building was 30 metres from the nearest 
neighbour and so obscure glazing was not being recommended. 
 
In response to Councillor Cargill, Mrs Panayi stated that the new building would be at the same 
level as the rest of the site which would ensure accessibility within and between the school 
buildings. Digging into the site had been considered but the applicant had ultimately decided this 
was not feasible. Alternative sites had also been considered but there were none within Coleshill 
which meant that if the school was not built on the existing site it would have to be located on a 
greenfield site outside of Coleshill. 
 
In response to Councillor Cargill, Mrs Panayi stated that if the Applicant was not able to provide 
access for emergency vehicles Fire and Rescue would ask for sprinklers to be installed. She 
acknowledged Members’ desire to see increased provision of sprinklers in schools but it was cost 
prohibitive and unless building regulations were changed it was unlikely that the prevalence of 
sprinklers would increase. 

Page 8

Page 4 of 7



 

 
Regulatory Committee 
 
03.09.19 

 
Councillor Warwick noted the Highways objection to the application and the advice from officers 
that Members could only refuse the application if they felt that the impact on the local road network 
was severe and the difficult position this placed the Committee in. He asked how Planning Officer 
had come to the opinion that the Highways objection did not show a severe impact on the road 
network. Councillor Chattaway also added his concern that the County Council was arguing with 
itself and had not been able to resolve the issue.  
 
Scott Tompkins responded that Planning Officers looked to the Planning Inspectors to define what 
‘severe impact’ meant in planning terms and that it was the opinion of the officers that given the 
nature of the roads surrounding the site and the weighting given to school expansion it was 
unlikely that a refusal would stand up to appeal. This was not to say that the Planning Officers did 
not take the concerns from Highways seriously and they were seeking to address them through a 
school travel plan which needed to become a living document for the school that was regularly 
revised and looked to and the Highways objection and concerns of the Committee helped to raise 
its profile. 
 
Councillor Warwick stated that he was keen to see an enforceable travel plan that encouraged 
greener transport options and asked if more could not be done to encourage modal shift. 
 
Mrs Panayi responded that development of travel plans was an ongoing process and although the 
school already had one condition 13 required it to be updated to address on-street parking and a 
staggered drop-off and collection regime to spread out the school day. She also suggested that 
Members could consider additional conditions around cycle storage provision. 
 
In response to Councillor Rolfe, Mrs Panayi confirmed that the decking on the south west side of 
the building would be screened and would primarily be used as a fire escape route. She also 
confirmed that the trees due to be removed would be replaced by substantial trees but she wanted 
to seek advice from the Council’s arboriculturalist on the species of tree as she felt the sweet 
chestnut suggested by the applicant may not be suitable. 
 
Councillor Simpson-Vince asked officers to confirm if the existing school facilities such as the hall 
and kitchen/ cafeteria would be able to accommodate a more than doubling of pupil numbers as 
they were not due to be expanded. She also stated that it was a shame that no solar panels had 
been suggested for the roof of the new building given its positioning. 
 
Mrs Panayi responded that she understood that the existing facilities would be used separately by 
infant and junior classes so increased capacity was not required. She also stated that the building 
would have air source heat pumps and was designed to be energy efficient while having minimal 
impact on the visual amenity of neighbours which is why it had been designed with a grey roof 
rather than the standard aluminium and solar panels which would have detracted from this. 
 
Public Speakers 
 
The Chair invited Councillor Reilly to address the Committee as a local Councillor. Councillor Reilly 
stated that the positive aspects of the application for both pupils and the community were clear and 
the impact on visual amenity was acceptable. He still had serious concerns about the impact on 
the local highways network especially given the site’s proximity to the proposed HS2 line which 
would cause severe disruption during construction. Councillor Reilly stated that he felt the 

Page 9

Page 5 of 7



 

 
Regulatory Committee 
 
03.09.19 

Highways objection could be overcome but that the conditions attached to the application clearly 
did not achieve this.    
 
The Chair invited Shaun Foley to speak in objection to the application. Mr Foley stated that there 
were still substantial road safety concerns with the application and the traffic survey that had been 
put forward was full of inaccuracies and the methodology had breached GDPR rules. The area 
around the school already suffered from congestion with access for emergency services being 
blocked and an unacceptable number of incidents of unattended runaway vehicles.  
 
The Chair invited Alison Doyle to speak in objection to the application. Mrs Doyle stated that she 
did not believe that the conditions attached to the permission were adequate to address the 
highways issues and the lack of parking available. She also felt that the overlooking caused by the 
new building had been understated. She stated that the timings of construction on the site needed 
to be controlled and that the best option was still to seek an alternative site in Coleshill for a junior 
school.  
 
The Chair asked officers to respond to Mrs Doyle’s suggestion of an alternative site and concerns 
about overlooking. 
 
Mrs Panayi reiterated that alternative sites in Coleshill had been looked at but there were no other 
suitable sites within the town meaning any alternative site would be greenfield and out of town.  
The Chair invited Gary Philpotts, Vice Chair of Governors to address the committee on behalf of 
the applicant. Mr Philpotts stated that High Meadow School was rated outstanding by Ofsted and 
was an accredited storytelling, eco and maths teaching school which had received international 
recognition and the school also had links with the Royal Shakespeare Company. Mr Philpotts 
stated that the school wanted to maintain a positive relationship with local residents and work to 
find a solution to the traffic issues and to encourage parents to use alternative modes of transport. 
He highlighted that the school had moved away from a parents’ evening to a parents’ day which 
meant that smaller numbers of parents were arriving throughout the day rather than concentrating 
all the traffic in the evening. 
 
Debate  
 
Councillor Chattaway stated that he regretted the omission of sprinklers and accepted the 
significant issues caused by the additional traffic generated by the application. He felt that these 
issues did not provide the Committee with strong enough grounds to refuse the application and 
proposed that planning permission be granted. 
 
Councillor Cooke seconded the motion and stated that he felt the only ground on which the 
application could be refused was the Highways objection and he was concerned that this would 
not hold up. 
 
Councillor Warwick stated that he did not feel he could support the application. The education 
provided at the school was clearly outstanding but a school also had a duty of care to pupils and 
the safety concerns raised by the objectors demonstrated the potential risks of an overcrowded 
site. The Highways objection stated that they did not have confidence in the transport assessment 
which made it very difficult to judge how severe the impact on the local road network would be. 
Councillor Warwick stated his preferred option would be to defer the application until a more 

Page 10

Page 6 of 7



 

 
Regulatory Committee 
 
03.09.19 

accurate travel assessment could be completed. He stated that expanding the school was the right 
thing to do but the transport aspects of the application felt rushed. 
 
Councillor Parry stated that she sympathised with Councillor Warwick’s position and that she 
would also prefer to defer the application. She stated that she had never voted to grant planning 
permission for an application which had an outstanding Highways objection and felt that the 
application had been rushed because of the need for additional school places to the detriment of 
local residents.  
 
Mrs Panayi stated that a traffic survey and revised traffic assessment was not a quick process and 
if the application was deferred it would likely come to the November meeting at the earliest. This 
delay would mean that construction would not be completed in time for September 2020.  
 
Councillor Cargill stated that every school had parking issues but it was clear that aspects of the 
travel plan were not completed to a high enough standard. He stated that it was very frustrating 
that the application had been brought to the committee at such a late stage. 
 
Councillor Gifford stated that he agreed with Councillor Cooke’s statement that a refusal would not 
stand up and that the only option left to the committee was to grant permission. 
 
The Chair stated that he felt that there was consensus that the principle of expanding the school 
was agreed but that the travel plan was where the issue lay. The Chair suggested that Members 
grant permission with the condition that a travel plan including an updated travel assessment be 
brought back to the Committee. 
 
In response to Councillor Warwick, Ian Marriott advised that the Committee could reserve the 
travel plan for its approval but that, given its importance, the Committee may wish to amend 
Condition 13 so as to require submission of the travel plan before occupation of the classroom 
block and receive a preliminary report on the preparation of the travel plan, and improved data to 
support its preparation, before Christmas. 
 
Councillor Chattaway stated that he would be happy to amend the motion to include a requirement 
that the travel plan be submitted to the Committee for approval. 
 
The Chair called a vote on the motion to grant permission with the travel plan to be submitted to 
the Committee for approval on the terms proposed by Mr Marriott which passed with 9 votes for 
and 1 abstention. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Committee authorises the grant of permission subject to the conditions as recommended 
by the officers with instructions that when submitted the travel plan be brought back to the 
Committee for approval and that the Committee receive a preliminary report on the preparation of 
the travel plan before Christmas.. 
 

Page 11

Page 7 of 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

Regulatory Committee – 8 October 2019 
 

Applications Dealt with Under Delegated Powers between  
22 August 2019 – 30 September 2019 

 
 

Recommendation 
 
That the Regulatory Committee notes the content of the report 
 
 Delegated Powers 
 

C. APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS BETWEEN  
22 August 2019 – 30 September 2019 

Application 
reference & valid 
date  
electoral division 
case officer 

Site location & proposal Decision date 

 
SDC/18CM033/TE 
 
17/05/2019 
 
Feldon 
 
 

 
Ufton Hill Landfill Site Southam Road Ufton 
Section 73 application applying for the 
variation of conditions 2, 13 and 14 of 
planning permission ref: S/91/0659 to 
amend the approved pre-settlement 
restoration profile, final restoration scheme 
and to agree an aftercare scheme and long-
term ecological management plan. 
 

 
Approved 12 Sept 
2019 

 
WDC/19CM012/SP 
 
Cubbington & Leek 
 
Wootton 

 
Finham Sewage Treatment Works Coventry 
Road Stoneleigh Coventry Installation of 
gas to grid plant at Finham Sewage 
Treatment Works. 

 
Approved 30 Sept 
2019 

 

Page 13

Page 1 of 1 Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Regulatory Committee - 8 October 2019 

 
Extension of sand and gravel working with restoration 

to agriculture, at: 
 

Land east of the A5, Shawell Quarry, Shawell 

RBC/18CM021 

 

Application No.: RBC/18CM021 

Advertised date: 09 August 2018 

Applicant(s) Mr Keith Wharmby, 
Tarmac Trading Ltd 
Quorn House, Meeting Street 
Quorn 
Loughborough 
Leicestershire 
LE12 8EX 

Agent(s) Mr Martin Clayton 
Geoplan Limited 
The Old Vicarage 
Market Street 
Castle Donnington 
Derbyshire 
DE74 2JB 

Registered by: The Strategic Director for Communities on 31 July 2018 

Proposal: Extension of sand and gravel working with restoration to 
agriculture. 

Site & location: Land east of the A5, Shawell Quarry, Shawell. [Grid ref: 
453228.280371]. 

 
See plan in Appendix A 

Page 15

Page 1 of 30 Agenda Item 3



 

 

 

Recommendation 
 

That the Regulatory Committee authorises the grant of planning permission 
for the extension of sand and gravel working with restoration to agriculture, 
following completion of satisfactory planning agreement with Leicestershire 
County Council, subject to the conditions (with any minor amendments 
approved by the Assistant Director Governance & Policy) and for the reasons 
contained within Appendix B of the report of the Strategic Director for 
Communities. 

 
1. Application details 

 
1.1 Tarmac Trading Ltd is applying for planning permission to extend the 

mineral extraction area of Shawell Quarry. The proposed development 
provides for the extraction of approximately 850,000 tonnes of mineral 
across a 19ha site. Approximately 100,000 tonnes of mineral would be 
extracted from within the Warwickshire administrative boundary. The 
extraction of the mineral and the restoration of the site would take place 
over a 2.5 year period. The restoration scheme provides for a 
combination of pre-extraction and low-level restoration, principally to 
agriculture, using site derived materials only. 

 
1.2 The application site traverses the county boundary of Warwickshire and 

Leicestershire. The vast majority of the application site is within 
Leicestershire, but a strip of approximately 2.6ha immediately East of 
the A5 falls under the jurisdiction of Warwickshire. It is this land to 
which this application is subject. A separate application has been 
submitted to Leicestershire County Council relating to the predominant 
portion of the site. 

 
1.3 Although separate applications have been submitted to the two 

Authorities, they are essentially the same application and the proposal 
cannot be implemented unless an approval is issued from each 
Authority as the consents would be interdependent. 

 
1.4 Extracted sand and gravel would be transferred by dump truck to the 

existing Shawell plant site located to the south of Gibbet’s Lane where 
it would be processed (washed and graded). HGV access would 
continue to be achieved via the A5/A426 roundabout and along 
Gibbet’s Lane. No specific changes are proposed to existing levels of 
output from the site. Mineral output is expected to remain around 
600,000 tonnes per annum, although it is entirely governed by market 
demand. 

 
1.5 Hours of working would remain the same as for the existing quarry: 

0700-1900 Monday to Friday and 0700 to 1400 Saturday. There would 
be no working on Sunday or Public Holidays. The permitted duration of 
the works within the existing quarry site would not be extended beyond 
31st December 2044 as per the extant conditions. 

Page 16

Page 2 of 30



 

 

 

1.6 The initial working of the site would be commenced in Phases 17A and 
17B. Prior to extraction operations commencing, sections of existing 
hedgerows would be removed (outside of the bird nesting season) to 
allow the Phase 17 development to commence. This would include the 
construction of an internal site access road between the plant site and 
Phase 17. From the existing plant site, it would follow the line of an 
existing internal site road to the south-west before turning due west 
across an area of previously worked and restored land to the south of 
the Monier blockworks. It would then pass over a drainage dyke (which 
would be culverted) and through a hedge into the Phase 17 working 
area. 

 
1.7 Initial extraction works would commence in phases 17A and 17B. Top 

soil would be stripped and stored in 3m high bunds between the 
extraction area and the boundaries of the site. The bunds would 
provide screening from the A5 and adjacent footpaths. Sand and gravel 
would be extracted from the working face using a hydraulic excavator 
which would load dump trucks to transport the mineral to the plant site. 
Approximately half the area of Phase 17B would be used for temporary 
overburden storage. 

 
1.8 The quarry workings would need to be de-watered in order to maximise 

reserve recovery. As Phase 17 progresses a quarry sump would be 
developed in the floor of the workings which would collect any water 
within the quarry void. This water would be pumped through a pipe to 
the existing clean water lagoon, which in turn is used to wash the ‘as- 
dug’ sand and gravel. From the processing plant the water would be 
pumped to the existing settlement lagoons located to the south of the 
plant site before being discharged from the site at the permitted 
discharge point. 

 
1.9 Phase 17A would be restored using in-situ and stored overburden and 

soils from screening bunds. Mineral extraction would progress 
northwards. As Phase 17B is worked soils from Phase 18 would be 
stripped and stored in bunds. Overburden from Phase 18 would be 
used to restore Phase 17B. 

 

1.10 Phase 18 would be progressively restored through the placement of 
overburden. Soils would be stripped within Phase 19 and stored in 3m 
high bunds which would be located to provide acoustic and visual 
screening. The overburden from Phase 19 would be used to 
progressively restore Phases 18. 

 
1.11 At this stage of the works Phase 18 would be largely restored to 

grassland pasture whilst mineral extraction progresses through Phase 
19. 

Page 17

Page 3 of 30



 

 

 

1.12 The final restoration of the site would be to a combination of agricultural 
land and grassland pasture, at a roughly a 50/50 split, with the former 
occupying the south of the site. The restored landform would be 
achieved using only site derived materials. No importation of material 
for restoration purposes is required or proposed. Following extraction, 
the clay interburden/overburden would be graded to the approximate 
landform illustrated by the restoration scheme prior to the placement of 
subsoils and then topsoils from store, to depths similar to those that 
occurred prior to the development. 

 
1.13 Phases 17A, 17B and approximately half of Phase 18 would be 

restored to pre-extraction levels and returned to an agricultural use. 
The northern section of Phase 18 and all of Phase 19 would be 
returned to grassland (for pasture) in the form of a shallow bowl, 
complete with balancing pond. A pipeline would be positioned between 
the balancing pond and the southern boundary of the site to maintain 
groundwater flow. Hedgerows would be replanted using native species 
in accordance with a specification to be agreed with the Mineral 
Planning Authority 

 
1.14 When reinstatement has been completed on each restoration phase, 

the land would enter a five-year aftercare programme. The aim of the 
scheme would be to restore the land to its full potential and to a 
condition where it does not need to be treated any differently to similar 
undisturbed land. 

 
1.15 In respect of agricultural restoration, the aftercare programme would 

commence from a date agreed with the Mineral Planning Authority. In 
those areas where hedgerow planting is proposed, the aftercare period 
would commence during the year following planting operations. The 
aftercare programme would be the same as the approved aftercare 
scheme for the current working areas. 

 
2. Consultation 

 

2.1 Rugby Borough Council Planning – No objection. 
 

2.2 Rugby Borough Council Environmental Health - No objection subject to 
conditions relating to monitoring and mitigation measures. 

 
2.3 Churchover Parish Council – No comments received at time of writing. 

 
2.4 Cllr. Adrian Warwick – No comments received at time of writing. 

 
2.5 Planning Policy - The part of this site that is inside the Warwickshire 

County Council boundary is a proposed allocation (Site 32) in the 
Warwickshire Minerals Plan Publication 2018 version, which will be 
submitted shortly to the Secretary of State. It sits alongside the 
adjacent area of land, west of the A5, which is Site 3 in the Minerals 
Plan, but which is not part of this application. 

Page 18

Page 4 of 30



 

 

 

It is anticipated that Site 32 will deliver up to 100,000 tonnes of sand 
and gravel. This figure has been counted as part of the sand and gravel 
requirement for the Minerals Plan and the site has been through a 
thorough site assessment process and Sustainability Appraisal, which 
confirms that the site is acceptable in principle for allocation in the 
Warwickshire Minerals Plan. 

 
2.6 Warwickshire Fire and Rescue – No objection. 

 
2.7 Archaeology – Liaised with Leicestershire County Archaeologist, and 

agreed to them to take the lead. 
 

2.8 Ecology – The proposal would result in a biodiversity loss of -1.06 
within Warwickshire. However, the County Ecologist is satisfied that 
offsetting through restoration of the site within Leicestershire will 
account for the loss in Warwickshire. 

 
2.9 Flood Risk and Water Management – No objection. 

 
2.10 Highway Authority – No objection. 

 
2.11 Environment Agency – No objection, requested condition to secure the 

safe de-watering of the site prior to commencement of development. 
 

2.12 Highways England – No objection. 
 

2.13 Natural England – No objection. 
 

2.14 Historic England – Historic England has no objection to the application 
on heritage grounds. The proposals would impact upon the setting of 
the Tripontium scheduled monument resulting in some harm to its 
significance. In determining this application the Council should be 
satisfied that the applicant has provided the justification for this low 
level of harm, and ensure it is weighed against the public benefits of 
the scheme, in line with NPPF 194 and 196. 

 
2.15 Leicestershire County Council – Resolved to approved application ref: 

2018/CM/0147/LCC at the 12th of September Planning Committee. 
 

2.16 Site notices posted – 09 August 2018 
 

2.17 Press notice posted on - 09 August 2018 
 

2.18 15 nearest residential properties individually notified on 09 August 2018 
 

3. Representations 
 

3.1 No representation received from member of the public in relation to this 
application. 

Page 19

Page 5 of 30



 

 

 

4. Previous Planning History 
 

4.1 Shawell Quarry has been in operation since the 1960s. In 2004, the 
quarry and associated operations was the subject of a periodic review 
of planning conditions under the Environment Act 1995 submitted to 
Leicestershire County Council (LCC) under reference: 2004/1605/03. 

 
4.2 Planning permission was granted by LCC in September 2007 

(reference 2006/1565/03) for the extraction of sand and gravel from an 
area to the west of the previously permitted quarry/landfill. It also 
included an extension of the landfill operation into the western 
extension. This permission governs the operation of the processing 
plant. In 2015 planning permission (reference 2015/0295/03) was 
granted for a northerly extension to the sand and gravel workings into 
an area known as Fields Farm. 

 
4.3 A further application for the extraction of sand and gravel over 52 

hectares (ha) of land to the west of the existing site was submitted to 
Leicestershire and Warwickshire County Councils in January 2017 
which included the land subject to this application and an additional 33 
hectares to the west of the A5 (WCC ref: RBC/17CM002) (LCC 
reference 2017/0117/03). This application remains undetermined 
pending further assessment work relating to land within Warwickshire. 
The applicant has submitted this application seeking to secure earlier 
access to the resource on land to the east of the A5. 

 
5. Assessment and Observations 

Location 

5.1 The Shawell/Cotesbach quarry and landfill site is located north west of 
the village of Shawell and south of the village of Cotesbach, near 
Lutterworth. The mineral extraction and landfill area is located north of 
Gibbet Lane, a road which links Shawell with the A5/A426 junction to 
the west of the site. The associated minerals processing plant, several 
silt settlement lagoons, a roof tile works, and the site of a disused 
concrete block works are located to the south of Gibbet Lane. Mineral 
is transported from the current extraction area to the processing plant 
by means of a conveyor which crosses under Gibbet Lane. 

 
5.2 An inert waste recovery and recycling facility is also situated south of 

Gibbet Lane. The nearest nationally designated ecological site is the 
Cave’s Inn Pits SSSI (Site of Special Scientific Interest), approximately 
700 metres south east of the application site. The Scheduled 
Monument of Tripontium lies 500 metres south east of the proposal. 
The site occupies a rural location and is surrounded by agricultural 
land. The nearest residential properties are Gibbet House, 50m away 
and ‘Green Acres’ which is adjacent to the north eastern boundary. 

Page 20

Page 6 of 30



 

 

 

Amenity Issues 
 

5.3 Mineral extraction can give rise to adverse impact upon amenity, 
predominantly through dust and noise generation and visual intrusion. 
As such, it is important that these impacts are minimised and mitigated 
against, especially when operations are being conducted in the vicinity 
of sensitive receptors. 

 
Dust 

 

5.4 Dust would likely be generated by the proposed operations through the 
movement of vehicles and material during mineral extraction and 
restoration. To minimise the impact of transient dust the application 
proposes a number of mitigation measures, including dust suppression 
and avoidance methods. Should the committee be minded to grant 
approval, it is proposed to impose a condition to control the generation 
of dust to ensure there are no adverse impacts on amenity. 

 
Noise 

 

5.5 Existing noise levels have been measured at four noise sensitive 
locations of which the most important are those three to the north west 
of the site at the nearest residential properties. The predicted noise 
levels show that normal operations can take place without breaching 

the 55 dB (A) LAeq, 1h level set in the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
at these residential properties. However, during temporary operations, 
namely soil stripping and bund construction/removal the predictions 

show that the 70 dB (A) LAeq, 1h set in the PPG would be exceeded at 
Green Acres whilst forming and removing the screen mound in 
proximity to the property. 

 
5.6 In order to mitigate this, the applicant proposes either a temporary 

acoustic fence between the property and the screen bund or a buffer 
zone of 40 metres between the property and the screen bund. Either of 
these solutions would allow the development to take place within the 
noise levels set by the PPG. If an acoustic fence is chosen by the 
applicant then the details of this need to be agreed in advance of its 
installation and would be secured via planning condition. 

 
5.7 The application also contains other general mitigation measures that 

would assist in reducing noise levels from the development. 
Furthermore, the proposed hours of operation of 0700-1900 hours 
Monday to Friday and 0700-1400 hours on Saturdays would reduce the 
noise impacts of the development on residential properties. However, 
notwithstanding this, when operations reach phase 19 of the proposed 
working plan, the soil stripping and bund construction/removal would be 
limited to between the hours of 0900-170 Monday to Friday to further 
protect residential amenity. 

Page 21

Page 7 of 30



 

 

 

Visual Impact 
 

5.8 The Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) submitted to 
support the application concludes that the proposed development 
would have a limited and short-term adverse effect upon the local 
landscape and visual resources. Mineral extraction is an acceptable 
form of development in the countryside provided workings are restored 
appropriately given that they are a temporary land use. 

 
5.9 The most significant visual impact created by the proposal would be 

upon the dwelling ‘Green Acres’ to the immediate north west of the site. 
Operations would be conducted in immediate proximity to the property 
boundary during the construction of the screening bund. However, 
these works would be brief in nature and the screening bund is 
essential to mitigate against noise and visual impact during extraction 
and restoration operations. 

 
5.10 In the long term the site would revert to the existing baseline with the 

benefit of additional hedgerows, woodland and grassland habitats. It is 
considered that the conclusions of the LVIA are satisfactory. However, 
the assessment is based on the existing boundary vegetation being 
retained and the site being restored to the habitats set out on the 
restoration concept plan. As such, these matters would be subject to 
control by planning conditions imposed on any approval Members may 
be minded to grant. 

 
Environmental Issues 

 
Soils and Agriculture 

 

5.11 A soil and agricultural land classification survey has been carried out 
concluding that the land is sub-grade 3b, agricultural use limited by soil 
wetness. All soils would be retained within the site and used in the 
restoration of the land. Subject to the control of soil handling activities 
by planning condition, it is considered that the issues relating to soils 
and agricultural land are capable of being satisfactorily resolved. 

 
Ecology 

 

5.12 In relation to ecology, there are no designated species or areas present 
within the site and the land is of minimal wildlife value. The proposed 
development would result in the loss of 311 metres of species-poor 
hedgerow and four mature trees that have a low potential to provide 
bat roosts. To compensate for this loss the restoration scheme 
proposes 617 metres of new hedgerow, 0.6 hectares of deciduous 
woodland, 1.6 hectares of lowland meadow and the installation of five 
bat boxes on land within the wider Shawell Quarry site. 

Page 22

Page 8 of 30



 

 

 

5.13 The Cave’s Inn Pits SSSI is located approximately 700 metres to the 
south-east of the application area and the submitted information sets 
out that this proposal would not have an additional impact on the SSSI; 
Natural England concur that this proposal would not affect the SSSI. 

 
5.14 After reviewing the Biodiversity Impact Assessment the County 

Ecologist is satisfied that the 1.06 net loss in Warwickshire can be 
offset by the net gain that would be achieved in the Leicestershire part 
of the site through the creation of improved habitat, secured by 
planning conditions. 

 
Flood Risk and Water Environment 

 

5.15 An assessment of the potential impacts of the proposal on 
hydrogeology, hydrology, and flooding has been undertaken. The 
assessment concludes that the development can operate and be 
restored without adverse effects on the water environment. However, 
there is a possibility that there could be an effect on the ability of the 
adjoining tile works to continue to abstract water. 

 
5.16 Measures to address this have been agreed between the tile works 

and the applicant and the Environment Agency consider these 
acceptable. This should form the basis of a legal agreement. The 
Environment Agency has advised that a scheme for the de-watering of 
the site is required and Leicestershire’s Lead Local Flood Authority has 
advised that a water management scheme during construction and a 
maintenance scheme for the drainage system are required.  This 
advice is considered germane and the schemes necessary to make the 
development acceptable. Warwickshire’s Flood Risk and Water 
Management team have raised no objection to the proposal. 

 
5.17 It is considered that the water environment as well as all the other 

matters can be satisfactorily controlled and there is no concern that this 
proposal would result in unacceptable cumulative impacts on the local 
community. Therefore, subject to these conditions and the legal 
agreement as set out above being completed the effect of the proposal 
on the water environment would be acceptable. 

Page 23

Page 9 of 30



 

 

 

Highways and Access 
 

5.18 The mineral from the proposed extension area would be transported 
upon a new purpose-built haul road to the south of the tile works in to 
the existing plant site. The applicant states that there would be no 
changes to the site’s output as a result of this application and, 
therefore, HGV movements should remain similar to those currently 
prevailing. HGV movements relating to sand and gravel extraction and 
waste disposal operations are limited by condition 19 of planning 
permission 2006/1565/03 to 2,244 trips in any week. A similar 
condition restricting HGV movements would be attached to this 
proposal in addition to a condition ensuring HGVs do not enter the 
Highway directly from the extraction area, should members be minded 
to grant approval. 

 
5.19 A ground stability risk assessment has been provided with the 

application showing that subject to the mineral extraction taking place 
as presented within the assessment there should be no effect on the 
A5. However, the assessment does recommend that on the northern 
boundary the extent of extraction is moved five metres further away 
from the boundary. Restricting the northern extent of mineral 
extraction and ensuring slopes are created as shown would be 
controlled by condition. Subject to these conditions the effects of the 
development on the Highway are considered acceptable. 

 
Rights of Way 

 

5.20 Public footpaths RS4x, R64x and RS4y run to the south west and 
south of the site, the two former routes run west of the A5 and the later 
to the east but south of the application site. Given existing hedgerows, 
the A5 and the proposed screening bunds, it is not expected that 
mineral extraction operations would have a significant effect on the 
enjoyment of the public rights of way. Furthermore, the development is 
temporary in nature, so any impact would only be felt over a limited 
period of time. 

 
Heritage 

 
Archaeology and Heritage 

 

5.21 In order to fully assess the archaeological potential of the site, a 
geophysical survey was conducted and identified four areas containing 
settlements dating from the late Iron and/or Roman age. In addition, 75 
trial trenches were dug in the areas of anomalies found by the survey. 
The trenching indicates Roman occupation in the southern part of the 
site, although with no direct link to Tripontium and Iron Age activity in 
the north. No additional archaeological investigation is offered but 
archaeological observation and recording should take place as the 
development progresses and would be required via planning condition. 

Page 24

Page 10 of 30



 

 

 

5.21 The starting point for the assessment of this proposal is the statutory 
duty under Section 66(1) and Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special regard to 
the desirability of preserving the setting of listed buildings and to 
preserve or enhance the character of conservation areas, respectively, 
and this is given considerable importance and weight. 

 
5.22 Shawell Conservation Area is over 1 kilometre to the north east of this 

proposal. The nearest listed buildings are the Grade II* Coton House 
and Grade II* Church of All Saints, also over 1 kilometre from the 
proposal. It is considered that the distance between these statutorily 
listed heritage assets and the intervening topography and landscape 
means that this proposal would not affect the setting of the listed 
buildings or the Shawell Conservation Area. 

 
5.23 The Tripontium Roman Station and the Motte castle and associated 

earthwork SSW of All Saints Church Scheduled Monuments (SM) are 
of national significance and thus, their conservation is given great 
weight. This proposal does not directly affect either of the SMs but, 
through proximity, could affect their setting. It is considered that this 
proposal would impact upon the setting of the Tripontium Roman 
Station resulting in some harm to its significance but this harm is low 
level and thus less than substantial. 

 
5.24 Paragraph 196 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out that 

‘Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm 
to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be 
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including, where 
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.” 

 
5.25 The potential harm of this proposal has been assessed as less than 

substantial and the public benefits of the proposal would be the 
continued supply of sand and gravel for use in construction and 
maintenance projects (and by the neighbouring tile works factory) and 
the continued employment that this brings both directly and indirectly. 
It is considered that these public benefits outweigh the potential harm 
that may arise to the setting of the Scheduled Monument near to the 
proposal. It must also be considered that the harm is temporary (two 
and a half years) and following successful restoration the harm will 
cease. 

 
Planning Policy 

 
The Development Plan 

 

5.26 The development plan is as follows: 
- Warwickshire Minerals Local Plan (1995) (saved policies); 
- Adopted Rugby Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2031 

Page 25

Page 11 of 30



 

 

 

5.27 Emerging Plans 
 

- Warwickshire Minerals Local Plan – 2nd Publication Consultation - 
October 2018 (the pre-submission plan) 

 
5.28 Other relevant policy documents are: 

 
- National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF) 

Warwickshire Minerals Local Plan (1995) (saved policies) 

5.29 Policy M1 states that proposals for mineral extraction will normally only 
be given approval within ‘Areas of search’ and ‘Preferred Areas’. The 
proposed extension to Shawell quarry falls within the ‘Area of search’ 
as defined by Proposal Map 1. 

 
5.30 Policy M4 states that the County Planning Authority will consider 

applications for the winning and working of sand and gravel in the 
context of an assessed regional demand and the aim to provide and 
maintain a stock of permitted reserves in accordance with the latest 
national and regional guidelines through the plan period. 

 
5.31 Clearly the plan period has now lapsed, but the policy goes on to state 

in the supporting text that the implementation of Policy M4 does not 
mean that planning permission will automatically be refused when the 
landbank requirement has been reached. 

 
5.32 The application proposes a relatively small contribution of 100,000 

tonnes to the landbank and is associated with a larger contribution with 
the Leicestershire County area. It is considered pragmatic to permit the 
extraction of the mineral given the site is allocated within the emerging 
Minerals Plan and facilitates a wider mineral extraction operation that 
contributes to Leicestershire’s mineral supply obligation. 

 
 

5.33 Policy G5 states that ‘To conserve and improve the environment, all 
proposals for development will be expected to create an interesting and 
attractive environment, harmonise with their surroundings and secure 
the proper management of traffic’. 

 
5.34 The proposal complies with Policy G5 as the use of screening bunds 

will limit landscape impact during operation and once restored the land 
will offer a range of habitat and sit comfortably in the wider landscape. 
The proposal will not have an adverse impact on the highway network 
as existing vehicle movements associated with the site are to be 
maintained for the life of this development. 

Page 26

Page 12 of 30



 

 

 

5.35 Policy E4 seeks to ensure proposals do not have an adverse impact 
upon scheduled ancient monument and to ensure archaeology is 
excavated or recorded appropriately. As previously discussed in this 
report, it is considered that there would not be an impact upon the 
scheduled ancient monument that would warrant the refusal of the 
application. In addition, a scheme for archaeology survey has been 
conducted and a programme to ensure recording of any finds is 
required by condition. As such, the proposal complies with the policy. 

 
5.36 Policy M6 states that applications for mineral extraction will be 

determined in accordance with the provisions of the development plan 
and their impact on a range of factors including; operational and 
economic need, physical restraints, transport and policy 
considerations. These factors have been assessed through this report 
and it is considered that the proposal is in accordance with the policy. 

 
5.37 Policy M7 seeks to ensure there are no adverse environmental effects 

and the implications for resident’s quality of life are mitigated at all 
mineral workings. The proposal, combined with planning conditions, 
will ensure that adverse impacts on amenity such as dust, noise and 
visual impact will be mitigated against appropriately. 

 
5.38 Policy M9 seeks to ensure that the restoration of mineral workings is of 

a high standard and of a beneficial afteruse in accordance with the 
development plan. The site is proposed to be restored to create a 
range of habitats including grassland, woodland and water bodies, as 
well as for agricultural purposes. These afteruses contribute to 
biodiversity and the rural economy, and as such accord with the 
development plan. 

 
Warwickshire Minerals Local Plan – 2nd Publication Consultation - 
October 2018 (the pre-submission plan) 

 

5.39 Work on the replacement Minerals Local Plan has been ongoing for a 
number of years. In 2009 the County Council published its Revised 
Spatial Options consultation document which included details of all 
mineral sites put forward by the minerals industry and landowners for 
consideration including a large number of sand and gravel sites. In 
December 2013/2014 the county council issued a fresh call for sites 
but only for those producing sand and gravel. In October 2015 the 
county council published its Preferred Option and Policies consultation 
document (the draft plan – Regulation 18). 

 
5.40 The draft plan which was accompanied by a number of other 

supporting and technical documents contained proposals for nine site 
based allocations for sand and gravel. The draft plan referred to the 
site as “existing”. Consultation on the Preferred Option and Policies 

document closed on 4th January 2016. Representations on the 
consultations were reported to Cabinet in October 2016 when approval 
was given to consult on the Publication draft (regulation 19). 

Page 27

Page 13 of 30



 

 

 

The Publication draft was consulted upon between December 2016 
and February 2017. 

 
5.41 Since the first Regulation 19 consultation carried out between 

December 2016 and February 2017, the plan requirements have 
significantly changed due to the a fall in the most recent 10 year sales 
average from the Local Aggregates Assessment (LAA) 2017. The total 
plan requirement of sand and gravel in the plan period has fallen from 
8.022 million tonnes to 6.525 mt since the end of the last consultation, 
which would have been a large over provision. Consequently, a further 
consultation of the plan (Publication 2018) based on the lower plan 
requirement for sand and gravel was agreed at Full Council (July 2017) 

and consultation undertaken on 31st October and ended on 13th 

December 2018. 
 

5.42 The revised plan (Publication 2018) now has a reduced number of sites 
(six sites) and a total sand and gravel tonnage of 7.51 over the plan 
period (2032). The Planning Policy team are in the process of 
reviewing and uploading comments. The final plan is likely to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State in autumn/winter with an EIP 
possibly in spring/summer 2020 and thereafter adoption at spring 2021 
depending on the nature and extent of, and the response to the 
objections received on the plan. 

 
5.43 The application site has been referred to in the plan as “Allocated Site 

32”. Determination of the planning application should not be delayed on 
the ground of prematurity since the proposed plan has not yet been 
submitted for examination and the scale of the proposal is not so 
substantial as to be capable of undermining the plan-making process. 

 
5.44 Provision has been made within the application and will be further 

secured through the implementation of conditions to ensure the phased 
working of the site, retention of public rights of way, and appropriate 
management of heritage assets and so that restoration includes a 
woodland aspect, in accordance with Policy S3. 

 
Adopted Rugby Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2031 

 

5.45 Policy GP1 – Securing Sustainable Development states that the 
Authority will work with applicants to secure developments which 
enhance social, economic and environmental sustainability, echoing 
the requirements of the NPPF. 

 
5.46 The proposal meets these requirements given it is an extension to an 

already well established mineral extraction site benefitting from its own 
processing plant and associated infrastructure. The proposal would not 
result in an increase in vehicle movements, would retain the jobs 
directly and indirectly associated with the operation, and has 
demonstrated that the site would be restored to achieve a net 
biodiversity gain. 

Page 28

Page 14 of 30



 

 

 

5.47 As such, approval would be seen as a sustainable decision as it 
negates the need to source the mineral from an alternative location 
which may not benefit from the established infrastructure and may 
result in additional vehicle movements associated with processing of 
mineral. 

 
5.48 Policy HS5 –Traffic Generation and Air Quality, Noise and Vibration, 

seeks to ensure development does not have an adverse impact on 
amenity by way of the aforementioned and to achieve or exceed air 
quality neutral standards. 

 
5.49 The proposal does not seek to create any additional vehicle 

movements from the site that do not already occur under its existing 
operations. As such, there would be no additional adverse impact upon 
air quality. It can be argued that the extension of the site itself means 
additional movements. However, on balance the proposal is 
considered acceptable as if the mineral was not extracted at this 
location it would be required to be supplied from elsewhere which is 
likely to give rise to a similar level, if not more vehicle movements. 

 
5.50 Impacts upon residential amenity in relation to noise have been 

assessed through the application process and would be controlled by 
planning condition including restrictions on hours of operation and the 
inclusion of screening bunds/fences. As such, the proposal accords 
with this policy. 

 
5.51 Policy NE1 – Protecting Designated Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

Assets seeks to ensure development protects against and 
compensates for effects on biodiversity. As previously discussed in this 
report, conditions would be implemented that would protect biodiversity 
during operation, and ensure a biodiversity gain once the site is 
restored. As such, the proposal complies with the policy. 

 
5.52 Policy SDC2 – Landscaping requires the inclusion of landscaping 

aspects to form an integral part of a development’s design, 
incorporating native species to minimise visual intrusion upon 
neighbouring uses, and measures to ensure the long term 
maintenance of such landscaping. 

 

5.53 Screening bunds are proposed as a part of this development to 
mitigate visual intrusion in this rural location. Hedgerows are to be 
retained where possible and replaced once the site is restored. The 
aftercare condition will ensure the successful implementation of the 
landscaping proposed as a part of the site’s restoration. As such, the 
proposal accords with the policy. 

Page 29

Page 15 of 30



 

 

 

5.54 Policy SDC3 – Protecting and Enhancing the Historic Environment 
states that development will be supported that sustains and enhances 
the Borough’s heritage assets. As previously discussed, it has been 
concluded that the proposal would have some harm on a designated 
heritage asset. However, that harm is considered to be limited and 
would only be temporary in nature given the development’s limited life 
of 2.5 years. 

 
5.55 In addition, consideration must be given to the benefits of extracting the 

mineral from this sustainable location, which would ensure a benefit to 
the economy by way of direct employment and contributing raw 
resources to the local construction industry. On balance it is considered 
these benefits outweigh the temporary limited harm that the proposal 
would have on the designated asset. 

 
5.56 Policy SDC7 – Protection of the Water Environment and Water Supply 

seeks to ensure the protection of drinking water and to prevent adverse 
impact on water supply and quality. A condition and stipulation in a 
prospective section 106 agreement would ensure the protection of the 
water supply to the adjoining tile works. As such the proposal would 
comply with the requirements of the policy. 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 

5.57 Paragraph 11 states that decisions should apply a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, which means approving proposals 
that accord with an up to date development plan. Although the Mineral 
Plan is out of date, the proposal accords with its saved policies and the 
relevant policies in the Rugby Borough Local Plan. 

 
5.58 Paragraph 203 states that ‘It is essential that there is a sufficient supply 

of minerals to provide the infrastructure, buildings, energy and goods 
that the country needs. Since minerals are a finite natural resource, 
and can only be worked where they are found, best use needs to be 
made of them to secure their long-term conservation.’ 

 
5.59 The proposal complies with the above policy statement as it seeks to 

work mineral in a location where extraction operations are already 
occurring, thus it is pragmatic to extract the remaining resource to 
utilise existing infrastructure and prevent the need to cause adverse 
impacts elsewhere. 

 
5.60 Paragraph 205 states that ‘When determining planning applications, 

great weight should be given to the benefits of mineral extraction, 
including to the economy.’ The paragraph also states that when 
considering applications mineral planning authorities should consider 
statutory designations, including those relating to landscape, ecology 
and heritage, adverse impact on public amenity and the appropriate 
restoration and aftercare of sites. 

Page 30

Page 16 of 30



 

 

 

It is considered that the application, with the aid of the appended 
conditions satisfies the requirements of the NPPF for the reasons 
previously outlined in this report. 

 
6. Conclusions 

 
6.1 The proposal represents a relatively modest extension to an existing 

mineral site that would allow for the extraction of 850,000 tonnes of 
sand and gravel, approximately 100,000 tonnes to be won within the 
Warwickshire administrative area, over a 2.5 year period. There have 
been no statutory objections to the application after further information 
was provided by the applicant regarding the historic environment, 
archaeology and ecology. 

 
6.2 It is also considered that any potential adverse impact upon amenity by 

way of noise, dust and visual intrusion can be mitigated to a 
satisfactory extent through the use of planning conditions. A section 
106 legal agreement must be completed between the applicant and 
Leicestershire CC to ensure the protection of the water supply to the 
adjoining title works. Given that the borehole in question is within 
Leicestershire, it is not considered necessary for Warwickshire CC to 
be a named party on the agreement. 

 
6.3 As previously mentioned, the application site traverses the County 

boundary between Leicestershire and Warwickshire and as such an 
identical planning application has been submitted to each Mineral 
Planning Authority. In order to ensure the effective and consistent 
operation of the site, provided both Authorities are minded to grant 
approval, both decision certificates and sets of conditions must be in 
matching terms. As the predominant part of the site, along with 
processing plant and site access is within Leicestershire, the respective 
Authority has taken the lead on the application and Members of its 

Planning Committee resolved to grant planning permission on the 12th
 

of September 2019, subject to conditions. 
 

6.4 As such, the conditions presented to Leicestershire’s Planning 
Committee have been appended to this report to ensure consistency. It 
is possible that the exact wording of the conditions may vary prior to 
issue, but their principles will remain the same. Officer delegation is 
sought from the Regulatory Committee to make these minor 
amendments, if necessary, prior to issuing any consent that Members 
may resolve to grant. 

 
6.5 It is considered that the extension of an existing quarry with associated 

on site infrastructure and processing plant is a sustainable way of 
ensuring the continued supply of sand and gravel to the local economy, 
as required by local and national policy. As such, for the reasons 
explained in this report, the application is recommended for approval 
subject to the appended conditions. 

Page 31

Page 17 of 30



 

 

 

7. Supporting Documents 
 

7.1 Submitted Planning Application – Planning reference RBC/18CM021 
 

7.2 Appendix A – Map of site and location. 
 

7.3 Appendix B – Planning Conditions. 
 

 
 Name Contact Information 

Report Author Tom Evans tomevans@warwickshire.gov.uk 
01926 41 2645 

Assistant Director for 
Environment 
Services. 

Scott Tomkins Scotttomkins@warwickshire.gov.uk 
01926 412422 

Strategic Director for 
Communities. 

Mark Ryder markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk 
01296 412811 

Portfolio Holder Cllr Jeff Clarke cllrclarke@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Page 32

Page 18 of 30

mailto:tomevans@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:Scotttomkins@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:cllrclarke@warwickshire.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Application No: RBC/18CM021 

Land East of the A5, Shawell Quarry, Shawell, Rugby 

Extension of sand and gravel working with restoration to agriculture 
 
Regulatory Committee 8th October 2019 

 
Warwickshire County Council 
Shire Hall 
Warwick, CV34 4SA 
Telephone (01926 410410) 
www.warwickshire.gov.uk 

Scale 1:7500 Drawn by: TE Dept: Communities © Crown Copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey 100019520. 

P
age 33

P
age 19 of 30

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/


 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

Appendix B 

 
Extension of sand and gravel working with restoration 

to agriculture, at: 
 

Land east of the A5, Shawell Quarry, Shawell 

RBC/18CM021 

Planning Conditions. 
 

Commencement 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three 
years from the date of this permission. 

 
Notification of Commencement 

 

2. Written notification of the commencement of: 
 

a) soil stripping from within the extension area; 
b) mineral extraction from within the extension area; 

 
shall be provided to the Mineral Planning Authority within seven days 
from the date of such commencement. 

 
Duration 

 

3. This permission shall be limited to a period of two and a half years from 
the commencement of the development, by which time the mineral 
working operations hereby permitted shall have ceased, all plant and 
machinery removed and the land reinstated in accordance with the 
reclamation details approved under condition number 33. 

 
Adherence to Approved Details 

 

4. Unless otherwise required by the conditions attached to this permission 
the development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
details: 

 
a) planning application reference RBC/18CM021 and accompanying 

environmental statement; and 
b) the Regulation 25 Further Information submission. 

Page 34

Page 20 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

Working and Phasing Details 
 

5. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
drawing numbers 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018, 2366/ES/3 
revision D dated MAY 2018, 2366/ES/4 revision D dated MAY 2018, and 
2366/ES/5 revision F dated JULY 2018. 

 
6. Notwithstanding the proposed limits of mineral extraction shown on 

drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018 no mineral 
extraction shall take place within five metres south of the northern limit of 
mineral extraction adjacent to Gibbet Lane. 

 
7. No infilling or waste recycling operations shall take place within the site as 

defined by solid red and blue lines south of Gibbet Lane on drawing 
number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018. 

 

Hours of Operation 
 

8. No operations (other than water pumping) shall be carried out at the site 
as defined by a solid red line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D 
dated MAY 2018 except between the following times: 0700 to 1900 
hours Monday to Friday; and 0700 to 1400 hours Saturday. There shall 
be no operations (other than water pumping) on Sundays, Bank Holidays 
and Public Holidays. 

 
Access 

 

9. There shall be no vehicular access to or from the site as defined by a solid 
red line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018 from 
Gibbet Lane for any purpose in connection with the development hereby 
permitted. 

 
Archaeology 

 

10. No stripping of soils within the site as defined by a solid red line but outside 
of the solid blue line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 
2018 shall take place unless and until a written scheme of investigation 
for archaeological observation and recording has been submitted to and 
agreed in writing with the Mineral Planning Authority. Once approved 
works shall take place in accordance with the approved scheme. 

 
Dust 

 

11. No operations shall take place in Phase 18 as shown on drawing 
number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018 unless and until a dust 
management scheme has been submitted to and approved by the 
Mineral Planning Authority. The scheme should include a programme 
for monitoring the dust emissions from the site and set a limit for those 
dust emissions. Once approved works shall take place in accordance 
with the approved scheme. 

Page 35

Page 21 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

12. The Dust Control Measures set out in Appendix 3 of Appendix 6 dated 
12 July 2018 (reference R18.9090/4/DW) of the Environmental 
Statement dated July 2018 shall be undertaken at all times. Internal 
roads and dry exposed material shall be watered as necessary in dry 
and windy conditions to prevent dust becoming airborne. 

 
Ecology 

 

13. Within twelve months from the commencement of the development 
hereby permitted five Schwegler 1FF bat boxes shall be provided within 
the site as defined by solid red and blue lines on drawing number 
2366/ES/1 revision C dated MAY 2018. 

 
Highways 

 

14. The number of HGV movements to or from the land the subject of this 
permission generated by sand and gravel extraction and waste disposal 
operations shall not in combination with the number of such movements 
from the land the subject of permission [2018/1457/03 
(2018/CM/0147/LCC)] granted by Leicestershire County Council exceed 
2244 in any week (a week beginning on a Monday for the purpose of this 
condition). A record shall be kept of all heavy goods vehicles accessing 
and leaving both areas of land. Back records shall be kept for a 
minimum of 12 months and access to these records shall be afforded to 
the Mineral Planning Authority on request. 

 
Lights 

 

15. No fixed lights shall be used or installed within the site as defined by a 
solid red line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018 

Page 36

Page 22 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

Noise 
 

Monitoring Scheme 
 
16. No stripping of soils within the site as defined by a solid red line but 

outside of the solid blue line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D 
dated MAY 2018 shall take place unless and until a scheme of noise 
monitoring has been agreed in writing with the Mineral Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall include details of: 

 
a) Noise monitoring at agreed locations to assess whether the 

limits specified in condition numbers 17 and 18 are being 
complied with; 

b) Frequency and duration of monitoring; 

c) Monitoring equipment to be used; 

d) Presentation of monitoring results, including details of dates, 
times, prevailing weather conditions and comments on 
significant noise sources and details of any ambient noise 
sources passed out of the measurements; 

e) Provision of monitoring results to the Mineral Planning Authority; 
and 

f) Procedures to be implemented if noise emissions exceed 
approved levels. 

 
Noise monitoring shall only be undertaken in full accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
Limits 

 
17. Except for temporary operations defined in condition number 18 noise 

levels arising from the site as defined by a solid red line on drawing 
number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018 when measured at the 
residential dwellings ‘Green Acres’ and/or ‘Gibbet House’ shall not 

exceed 55dB(A) LAeq, 1h (free field). 
 

Temporary Operations 
 
18. Noise levels arising from temporary operations, which for the purpose of 

this condition are site preparation, overburden removal, soil stripping and 
replacement, and the construction and removal of soil and overburden 
mounds, from the site as defined by a solid red line on drawing number 

2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018 shall not exceed 70dB(A) LAeq, 1h 

(free-field) at either of the residential dwellings ‘Green Acres’ and ‘Gibbet 
House’. Such activities should not affect any noise sensitive property for 
more than 8 weeks in any year. 

Page 37

Page 23 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

Temporary operations which exceed the normal day to day criterion set 
out in condition number 17 shall only be carried out in phase 18 as 
shown on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018 
between the hours of 0800 and 1800 Monday to Friday and the hours of 
0800 to 1200 on Saturdays and in phase 19 between the hours of 0900 
to 1700 hours Monday to Friday. 

 
Mitigation of Operations 

 
19. During operations involving the formation and removal of screening 

mounds within Phase 19 of the development as shown on drawing 
number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018, either temporary 
acoustic screening or a buffer zone of 40 metres shall be provided 
between the proposed screening mounds shown on the drawing and the 
private external amenity space of the residential dwelling identified as 
Green Acres on the same drawing. Details of the temporary acoustic 
fence shall be submitted to and approved by the Mineral Planning 
Authority in advance of its installation. 

 
20. The Noise Mitigation Measures set out in paragraph 6.4.1 of the Noise 

Assessment dated 11 July 2018 (reference R18.9089/5/AP) shall be 
undertaken at all times. 

 
Removal and Protection of Trees, Shrubs and Hedgerows 

 

21. Other than Hedgerow 2 and the 11 metres of Hedgerow 4 to facilitate the 
construction of a haul road (hedgerows shown on Page 22, Appendix A 
of the Ecological Impact Assessment dated 6 June 2018) and trees T1, 
T2, T3 and T4 shown on Page 25, Appendix C of the Ecological Impact 
Assessment dated 6 June 2018 no trees or hedgerows within the site as 
defined by a solid red line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D 
dated MAY 2018 shall be removed. 

 
22. Retained hedgerows shall be managed in accordance with paragraph 

6.13 of the Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment dated May 2018. 
 

Soil Handling & Ground Preparation Works 
 

23. All soil handling operations (including soil stripping, storage and 
replacement) shall be undertaken in accordance with paragraphs 4.5, 4.6 
and 4.7 of the Soils and Agricultural Use & Quality report dated 23rd April 
2018 (reference 463/4). 

Page 38

Page 24 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

24. The Mineral Planning Authority shall be notified in writing at least 5 days 
before each of the following stages: 

 
i. before each phase of soil stripping is due to commence; 

ii. when overburden has been prepared ready for soil replacement to 
allow inspection of the area before further restoration is carried out; 
and 

iii. completion of topsoil replacement to allow an opportunity to inspect 
the completed works and assess its suitability for entry into 
aftercare before the commencement of any cultivation and seeding 
operations. 

 
25. Overburden shall be replaced and levelled so that: 

 
a. after replacement of topsoil and subsoil the contours conform with 

the ‘PROPOSED CONTOURS’ shown on drawing number 
2366/ES/6 revision F dated JUNE 2018; and 

b. there is satisfactory site and surface drainage, so that the land is 
free from ponding and capable of receiving an effective under- 
drainage system. 

 
26. No soils shall be respread until the upper layers of the prepared surface 

have been ripped and stones, materials and objects which exceed 200 
millimetres in any dimension and occur on the surface of the ripped and 
loosened ground have been removed from the site or buried at a depth 
of not less than two metres below the final contours. 

 
27. The respread topsoil shall be loose tipped to enable a single pass at a tine 

spacing of 500 millimetres maximum to full depth of the topsoil plus 100 
millimetres. Any stones, materials and objects which exceed 100 
millimetres in any dimension and occur on the surface of the ripped and 
loosened soils shall be removed from the site or buried at a depth of not 
less than two metres below the final contours. 

 
28. All undisturbed areas of the site and all topsoil, subsoil and overburden 

mounds shall be kept free from agricultural weeds such as thistle, dock 
and ragwort. Cutting, grazing or spraying shall be undertaken, as 
appropriate, to control plant growth and prevent the production of seed 
and the subsequent spread of weeds onto adjoining agricultural land. 

 
Water Environment 

 

29. Prior to the commencement of mineral extraction within the site as 
defined by a solid red line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D 
dated MAY 2018 a scheme to secure the safe de-watering of the site 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Mineral Planning Authority. 
Once approved works shall take place in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

Page 39

Page 25 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

30. Prior to the commencement of mineral extraction within the site as 
defined by a solid red line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D 
dated MAY 2018 a surface water drainage scheme shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Mineral Planning Authority. The scheme should 
include the utilisation of holding sustainable drainage (SuDS) techniques 
with the incorporation of sufficient treatment trains to maintain or improve 
the existing water quality; the limitation of surface water run-off to 
equivalent greenfield rates; the ability to accommodate surface water 
run-off on-site up to the critical 1 in 100 year return period event plus an 
appropriate allowance for climate change, based upon the submission of 
drainage calculations; and the responsibility for the future maintenance 
of drainage features. Full details for the drainage proposal should be 
supplied, including but not limited to, headwall details, pipe protection 
details (e.g. trash screens), long sections and full model scenarios for 
the 1 in 1, 1 in 30 and 1 in 100 year plus climate change return period. 
Once approved works shall take place in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

 
31. Prior to the commencement of mineral extraction within the site as 

defined by a solid red line on drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D 
dated MAY 2018 details of the long-term maintenance of the sustainable 
surface water drainage system shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Mineral Planning Authority. Once approved works shall take place in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 

 
Restoration in the event of early cessation of working 

 

32. In the event of a cessation of winning and working of minerals prior to the 
achievement of the completion of all the winning and working described in 
the drawings mentioned in condition 5, and which in the opinion of the 
Mineral Planning Authority constitutes a permanent cessation within the 
terms of paragraph 3 of Schedule 9 to the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, a revised scheme to include details of reclamation and aftercare 
shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority for approval within six 
months of that cessation. The approved scheme shall be fully 
implemented within 12 months of approval. 

Page 40

Page 26 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

Reclamation 
 

33. Within six months of commencement of development, a detailed scheme 
of final landscaping and restoration of the site shall be submitted to the 
Mineral Planning Authority for approval. The submitted scheme shall be 
based on a phased approach and the restoration concept shown on 
drawing number S348-00062A dated 08/02/2019. The scheme shall 
include details of the following: 

 
a) plant species, sizes, quantities and locations, of all new tree, shrub 

and hedgerow planting, grass seed mixes; 

b) enhancement to the rights of way network linking Gibbet Lane to 
footpath X23; 

c) new woodland planting along the eastern side of the site from 
Gibbet Lane through to Phase 17A as shown on drawing 2366/ES/2 
revision D dated MAY 2018; and 

d) hedge laying of the retained part of hedgerow 4 as shown on Page 
22 of Appendix A of the Ecological Impact Assessment dated 6 
June 2018 located within Phases 17A and 17B as shown on 
drawing number 2366/ES/2 revision D dated MAY 2018. 

 
Planting and seeding in accordance with the approved scheme shall be 
carried out, as far as is reasonably practicable, within the first available 
planting season following the restoration of any substantial part of the 
site, in accordance with working and phasing details required by 
condition number 5. All trees, shrubs and hedgerows planted in 
accordance with the approved scheme shall be maintained for a period 
of five years following planting and such maintenance shall include the 
replacement of any plants that may die or be seriously damaged or 
become seriously diseased. 

 
Aftercare 

 

34. Within six months of commencement of development, a detailed 
aftercare scheme shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority for 
approval. The submitted scheme shall be in accordance with the 
restoration details required by condition number 33, and shall provide an 
outline strategy for the 5 year aftercare period specifying the steps that 
are to be taken, and the period during which they are to be taken, in 
order to bring the newly restored land to the required standard for use for 
agriculture and nature conservation, including the subsequent 
management of the restored land and vegetation. The steps shall 
include planting, cultivating, fertilising, watering, draining, and otherwise 
treating and managing the land. The land shall be treated and managed 
over a period of 5 years in accordance with the approved scheme, 
commencing on the date that restoration is completed to the satisfaction 
of the Minerals Planning Authority. 

Page 41

Page 27 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

Reasons 
 
1. To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. To enable the development to be monitored to ensure compliance 

with this permission. 
 
3. To provide for the restoration of the site within an agreed timescale 

in the interests of the amenities of the area. 
 
4. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 

carried out in a satisfactory manner. 
 
5. For the avoidance of doubt. 

 
6. In the interests of the highway and highway safety. 

 
7. For the avoidance of doubt. 

 
8. To protect the amenities of local residents. 

 
9. In the interests of the highway and highway safety. 

 
10. To satisfactorily record any archaeological interest found. 

 
11. To protect the amenities of the locality from the effects of dust 

arising from the development. 
 
12. To protect the amenities of the locality from the effects of dust 

arising from the development. 
 
13. To minimise the adverse impact of the operations on ecological 

interests. 
 

14. In the interests of the highway and highway safety. 
 
15. To ensure that lights from the site do not become a source of 

nuisance to local residents. 
 
16. To provide for a monitoring regime that ensures noise levels are 

within acceptable levels to protect the amenity of local residents. 
 
17. To ensure that noise arising from the site does not become a 

source of nuisance to local residents. 
 
18. To ensure that noise arising from the site does not become a 

source of nuisance to local residents. 

Page 42

Page 28 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

19. To ensure that noise arising from the site does not become a 
source of nuisance to local residents. 

 
20. To ensure that noise arising from the site does not become a 

source of nuisance to local residents. 
 
21. To ensure that only the identified vegetation is lost as a result of this 

development and to safeguard the existing vegetation during the 
course of the development. 

 
22. To limit the visual impact of the development. 

 
23. To minimise structural damage and compaction of the soil and to 

aid the final restoration of the site. 
 
24. To allow the Mineral Planning Authority sufficient time to inspect the 

soil handling and restoration works. 
 
25. To ensure adequate surface drainage, to enable an effective under 

drainage scheme to be installed, to reduce the risk of soil erosion 
and to allow the use of agricultural machinery following restoration. 

 
26. To ensure the reclaimed land is in an acceptable condition for 

agricultural after-use, and potential obstacles are removed prior to 
the replacement of soils. 

 
27. To ensure the reclaimed land is in an acceptable condition for 

agricultural after-use, and potential obstacles are removed prior to 
the replacement of soils. 

 
28. To prevent a build-up of harmful weed seeds in soils that are being, 

or will be used, for agriculture. 
 
29. To ensure that the proposed development and associated 

dewatering does not contribute to, is not put at unacceptable risk 
from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water 
pollution from previously unidentified contamination sources at the 
development site. 

 

30. To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and 
disposal of surface water from the site. 

 
31. To establish a suitable maintenance regime, that may be monitored 

over time; that will ensure the long-term performance, both in terms 
of flood risk and water quality, of the sustainable drainage system 
within the proposed development. 

 
32. To ensure reclamation of the site in the event of cessation of 

mineral working. 

Page 43

Page 29 of 30



 

03 Application RBC/18CM021 Shawell Quarry; Regulatory Committee 08.10.2019 

 

33. To ensure satisfactory restoration of the site. 
 
34. To ensure that a suitable regime of husbandry is pursued to bring 

the land to the required standard for the approved afteruse 

 
 

Development Plan Policies Relevant to the Decision. 

Warwickshire Mineral Plan 1995 

Policy M1 
Policy M4 
Policy M6 
Policy M7 
Policy M9 
Policy G5 
Policy E4 

 
Adopted Rugby Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2031 

 

Policy GP1 
Policy HS5 
Policy NE1 
Policy SDC2 
Policy SDC3 
Policy SDC7 

 
 

Reasons for the Grant of Planning Permission 
 
Compliance with the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 

 
In considering this application the County Council has complied with 
paragraph 38 contained in the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 44

Page 30 of 30


	Agenda
	1(3) Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	2 Delegated Decisions
	3 Planning Application Ref: RBC/18CM021 - Shawell Quarry

